
FORTY-THIRD MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New Y ark, 
on kfonday, 3 May 1948, at 11 a.m. 

President: Mr. F. B. SAYRE 
(United States of America). 

Present: The representatives of the following 
countries: Australia, Belgium, China, France, 
Iraq, Mexico, New Zealand, Philippines, Union 
of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom, 
United States of America. 

26. Provisional agenda (documents T/164 
and T I 164/Corr.1) 

1. Adoption of the agenda. 

2. Protection of the city of Jerusalem and its 
inhabitants: Letter from the President of 
the General Assembly to the President of 
the Trusteeship Council communicating a 
resolution of the General Assembly dated 
26 April 1948 (document T/158). 

27. Adoption of the agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

28. Continuation of the discussion on the 
protection of the city of Jerusalem and 
its inhabitants 

At the invitation of the President, Mr. Sher
tok, representing _the Jewish Agency for Pales
tine, and Jamal Bey Husseini, representing the 
Arab Higher Committee, took their seats at the 
Council table. 

The PRESIDENT informed the members of the 
Trusteeship Council of the contents of a tele
gram received the previous evening by Mr. 
Shertok, representative of the Jewish Agency 
for Palestine, which the latter had immediately 
communicated to Mr. Bunche, the Secretary of 
the Council. 

The telegram stated that the Jewish authori
ties had issued the order to cease fire in the 
Holy City pending the negotiation of truce 
terms, on the clear understanding that each 
party would resume its freedom of action if no 
agreement was reached. 

Mr. SHERTOK (Jewish Agency for Palestine) 
made it clear that the cease-fire order was 
strictly limited to the time required for nego
tiating the truce; he pointed out, therefore, how 
urgent it was to begin negotiations without 
delay, and asked that they should take place 
at Jerusalem, where they could be conducted 

QUARANTE-TROISIEME SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le lundi 3 mai 1948, a 11 heures. 

President: M. F. B. SAYRE 
(Etats-Unis d'Amerique). 

Presents: Les representants des pays suivants: 
Australie, Belgique, Chine, France, Irak, 
Mexique, Nouvelle-lelande, Philippines, Union 
des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, Royaume
Uni, Etats-Unis d'Amerique. 

26. Ordre du jour provisoire (documents 
T/164 et T/164/Corr.ll 

1. Adoption de l'ordre du jour. 

2. Protection de la ville de Jerusalem et de ses 
habitants: Lettre du President de l'Assem
blee generale au President du Conseil de 
tutelle transmettant une resolution de l' As
semblee generale en da:te du 26 avril 1948 
(document T/158). 

27. Adoption de l'ordre du jour 

L'ordre du jour est adopte. 

28. Suite de Ia discussion sur Ia protection 
de Ia ville de Jerusalem et de ses 
habitants 

Sur ['invitation du President, M. Shertok, 
representant de l' Agence juive pour la Palestine, 

,et Jamal Bey Husseini, representant du Haut 
Comite arabe, prennent j;lace a la table du 
Conseil. 

Le PRESIDENT communique aux membres du 
Conseil de tutelle les termes d'un telegramme, 
re~u la veille au soir par M. Shertok, represen
tant de I' Agence juive pour la Palestine, dont 
celui-ci a aussitot fait part au Secretaire du 
Conseil, M. Bunche. -

Le telegnimme declare que les autorites juives 
ont donne l'ordre de cesser le feu dans la Ville 
sainte en attendant la negociation des conditions 
d'une treve, etant bien entendu que chaque 
partie reprendra sa liberte d'action, si les nego
ciations n'aboutissent pas. 

M. SHERTOK ( Agence juive pour la Palestine) 
precise que l'ordre de cesser le feu se limite 
strictement au temps necessaire pour negocier la 
treve; aussi fait-il ressortir combien il est urgent 
d'entamer sans retard les negociations, ·et de
maude que celles-ci aient lieu a Jerusalem, ou 
elles pourraient etre menees par l'intermediaire 



76 

through the mediation of Truce Commission for 
Palestine appointed by the Security Council.' 

Jamal Bey HusSEIN! (Arab Higher Commit
tee) observed that he had already informed the 
Council six days previously that the Arab 
Higher Committee agreed to cease fire in the 
Old City and that it had been awaiting the 
consent of the other side. Up to the present he 
had been against negotiating truce terms through 
intermediaries at Jerusalem, but he now felt it 
would be more practical to negotiate tlie terms 
in Jerusalem itself, if these negotiations were 
conducted through the High Commissioner for 
Palestine. 

The PRESIDENT thought that before proceed
ing to an examination of the exact terms of the 
truce, the Council should agree on the text of 
the report on the progress of its work, which 
should be submitted to the General Assembly 
without delay. 

Mr. FLETCHER-COOKE (United Kingdom) 
first reminded the Council that he had proposed 
( 42nd meeting) the appointment of a neutral 
chairman of the Municipal Commission of Jeru
salem, subject to Jewish and Arab agreement, 
in order to ensure the continuity of the city's 
municipal services. The Government of the 
United Kingdom would support that proposal. 

Information received from Jerusalem made it 
clear that the members of the present Municipal 
Commission would not be in office after 15 May, 
and that the whole present structure of the 
municipality would have no legal basis after 
that date unless an appointment was made 
before 15 May. 

He had considered the International Red 
Cross representative for Palestine as a candidate, 
but the statutes of that organization would not 
allow him to accept such a post. 

The United Kingdom representative then 
communicated to the Trusteeship Council a 
letter that had been sent jointly to the High 
Commissioner for Palestine, on 30 April, by the 
Greek Orthodox Patriarch of Jerusalem, the 
Armenian Patriarch of Jerusalem and the Custos 
of Terra Sancta, with a request to transmit it 
to the United Kingdom Government and to the 
United Nations so that the Security and Trustee
ship Councils could take the necessary measures. 
The letter referred to incidents that had occurred 
at Tiberias and Haifa and fighting that had 
taken place around the Orthodox monastery of 
St. Simeon in Jerusalem, necessitating the with
drawal of the priests and causing fears that the 
sanctity of other Christian shrines might not be 
respected. 

The letter requested that immediate measures 
be taken to safeguard Christian sanctuaries in 
Jerusalem and throughout Palestine and to set 
up, after the termination of the British Mandate, 
an authority capable of ensuring the competent 

1 See Official Records of the Security Council, Third 
Year, No. 62. 

• 

de la Commission de treve instituee par le Con
seil de securite'. 

.Jamal Bey HusSEIN! (Haut Comite arabe) 
fmt observer qu'il a fait part, il y a deja six jours, 
de ce que le Haut Comite arabe acceptait de 
cesser lc feu dans la Ville vieille, et qu'il a at
tendu le consentement de la partie adverse. II 
etait oppose jusqu'ici a negocier les conditions de 
la treve par l'entremise d'intermediaires se trou
vant a Jerusalem, mais il pense main tenant qu'il 
sera plus pratique de negocier les conditions de 
la treve a Jerusalem meme, si ces negociations 
sont conduites par l'intermediaire du Haut Com
missaire pour la Palestine. 

Le PRESIDENT estime qu'avant de passer a 
1' exam en des conditions precises de la treve, le 
Conseil devrait se mettre d'accord sur les termes 
du rapport sur les progres accomplis dans son 
travail, rapport qu'il doit soumettre incessam
ment a 1' Assemblee general e. 

M. FLETCHER-CooKE (Royaume-Uni) rap
pelle d'abord qu'il a propose la nomination d'un 
president neutre de la municipalite de Jerusalem 
( 42eme seance)' afin d'assurer avec I' accord des 
Juifs et des Arabes la continuite des services 
municipaux de la ville. Le Gouvemement du 
Royaume-Uni soutiendra cette proposition. 

Les informations rec;ues de Jerusalem precisent 
que les membres de la Commission municipale 
actuelle ne seront plus en fonctions apres le 
15 mai, et que toute la structure actuelle de la 
municipalite n'aura plus, apres cette date, de 
base juridique, a mains qu'une nomination 
n'intervienne avant le 15 mai. 

II avait envisage la candidature du represen
tant pour la Palestine de la Croix-Rouge inter
nationale, mais les statuts de cette organisation 
ne permettent pas a ce fonctionnaire d'accepter 
ce genre de paste. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni communi
que ensuite au Conseil de tutelle une lettre 
adressee conjointement, le 30 avril, au Haut 
Commissaire pour la Palestine par le patriarche 
orthodoxe grec de Jerusalem, le patriarche 
armenien de Jerusalem et Ie custode de Terre 
sainte, avec demande de la communiquer au 
Gouvernement du Royaume-Uni et aux Nations 
Unies, pour que les Conseils de securite et de 
tutelle prennent les mesures qui s'imposent. La 
lettre fait etat d'incidents qui ont eu lieu a Tibe
riade et a Haifa, et de combats qui se sont de
roules autour du monastere orthodoxe de Saint
Simeon, a Jerusalem, necessitant le retrait des 
pretres et faisant craindre que la saintete d'autres 
sanctuaires chretiens ne soit pas respectee. 

La lettre demande que des mesures immedi~tes 
soient prises pour sauvegarder les sancturu;es 
chretiens a Jerusalem et dans toute la . Pale~tme 
et pour etablir, apres que le Mandat bntanmque 
aura pris fin, une autorite capable d'assurer la 

1 Voir les Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil de shu
rite, Troisieme Annee, No 62. 



administration of the ·city and of its environs, 
including Bethlehem, the Moubt of Olives and 
'Ein Karim. 

He pointed out the significance of this request 
for action, which he understood was occasioned 
by the occupation of property belonging to an 
Orthodox monastery at Katamon by armed 
Jewish forces. It was important to protect the 
Holy Places, many of which were outside the 
Old City of Jerusalem. 

Lastly, he informed the Council that further 
negotiations had been proceeding for the last 
twenty-four hours on the future of Jerusalem. 
Owing to the nature of the negotiations he was 
unable to acquaint the Trusteeship Council with 
them publicly, but he felt he should inform the 
Council in private and also the representatives 
of the Jewish Agency for Palestine and of the 
Arab Higher Committee. 

The PRESIDENT having suggested adjourning 
the meeting so that the Council could resume in 
private session, after a short interval, in order 
to hear the information the United Kingdom 
representative wished to communicate, the 
representatives of the Arab Higher Committee 
and of the Jewish Agency said they would like 
first to give further information regarding the 
incidents which had been mentioned. 

Jamal Bey HussEINI (Arab Higher Commit
tee) said that the reports alleging that Arab 
snipers had been operating from the positions 
in the grounds surrounding the Orthodox monas
tery were without any foundation. The taking 
possession of the grounds belonging to the 
monastery by armed Jewish forces was an act 
which could not be justified. Nevertheless, the 
Arab authorities would continue to respect all 
the Holy Places. 

Mr. SHERTOK (Jewish Agency for Palestine) 
stated that 200 Iraqi soldiers and other Arab 
forces of Palestine had for several weeks past 
occupied the St. Simeon monastery, which they 
used as a base for continuous sniping and attack 
upon the adjacent Jewish districts. The Jews 
could expect this position to become, at any 
moment, the base of an attack on their districts 
and had urged the Greek Orthodox Patriarch to 
bring about an evacuation of the Arab forces. 
No reply was received, and it was believed that 
the Patriarch had been unable to oppose the 
occupation of the monastery. In these conditions 
.the occupation of the monastery area by the 
Jewish forces became an imperative necessity 
from the military point of view. Mr. Shertok 
assured the Council that the Jewish action was 
in no way aimed at appropriating property be
longing to the Greek Orthodox Church. 

The representative of the Jewish Agency for 
Palestine then read a report on Arab military 
activities inside the Old City, stressing, inter 
alia, that Arab military forces had set up their 
headquarters in a Christian monastery of the 

77 

bonne administration de la ville et de ses en
virons, y compris Bethleem, lemont des Oliviers 
et Ain Karim. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni fait ressor
tir combien est significative une demande d'ac
tion, occasionnee, croit-il, par la prise de posses
sion a Katamon par des forces armees juives de 
terrains appartenant a un monastere orthodoxe. 
11 est important de sauvegarder les Lieux saints, 
dont la plupart sont situes hors de la Ville vieille, 
a Jerusalem. 

Enfin, M. Fletcher-Cooke informe le Conseil 
du fait que de nouvelles negociations ont ete 
entreprises depuis vingt-quatre heures sur l'ave
nir de Jerusalem. Leur nature ne permet pas au 
representant du Royaume-Uni d'en faire part 
publiquement au Conseil de tutelle, mais il croit 
opportun de l'en informer a huis clos et d'en 
aviser en meme temps les representants de 
l'Agence juive pour la Palestine et du Haut 
Comite arabe. 

Le PRESIDENT propose un ajournement de la 
seance pour qu'apres une breve interruption le 
Conseil puisse se reunir en seance privee, afin 
d'entendre les informations dont le representant 
du Royaume-U ni desire lui faire part. Mais les 
representants du Haut Comite arabe et de 
I' Agence juive expriment le vreu de donner 
d'abord des eclaircissements sur les incidents dont 
il a ete fait mention. 

Jamal Bey HussEINI (Haut Comite arabe) 
declare denuees de fondement Ies informations 
d'apres lesquelles des francs-tireurs arabes opere
raient a partir d'emplacements situes dans le 
domaine du monastere orthodoxe de Saint
Simeon. La prise de possession par des forces 
armees juives du terrain appartenant au monas
tere represente un acte in justifiable. En depit de 
cet acte, les autorites arabes continueront a res
pecter tous les Lieux saints. 

M. SHERTOK ( Agence juive pour la Palestine) 
declare que 2.00 soldats irakiens et des forces 
arabes de Palestine occupaient, depuis plusieurs 
semaines le monastere de Saint-Simeon, d'ou ils 
attaquaient continuellement et tiraient sur les 
quartiers juifs adjacents. Les Juifs pouvaient s'at
tendre a tout instant a ce que cette position de
vienne la base d'une attaque sur leurs quartiers; 
aussi ont-ils prie instamment Ie patriarche ortho
doxe grec de prendre des mesures pour faire 
evacuer les forces arabes. Cette requete resta sans 
reponse et il £aut croire que le patriarche n'avait 
pas pu s'opposer a !'occupation du monastere. 
Dans ces conditions !'action entreprise par les 
forces juives pour occuper la region du monas
tere s'imposait militairement. M. Shertok donne 
!'assurance que !'action juive ne tend nullement 
a une appropriation de terres appartenant a 
l'Eglise orthodoxe grecque. 

Le representant de l'Agerice juive pour la 
Palestine donne ensuite lecture d'un rapport sur 
les activites militaires des Arabes a l'interieur de 
la Ville vieille, faisant valoir entre autres que les 
forces militaires arabes ont installe leur quartier 



Old City and had been using sanctuaries as 
supply bases. 

78 

Jamal Bey HussEIN! (Arab Hig~er Commit
tee) said the Arab Higher Committee had al
ways feared that Jewish forces would occc:py 
the sanctuaries under the pretext that the Ar .1.bs 
were preparing some military operations or 
using them as bases. He said that the report 
presented by the representative of the Jewish 
Agency for Palestine was without any founda
tion, although it was quite possible that armed 
men might be going in and out of mosques. 

It was also possible that some political or
ganizations had been installed in buildings 
belonging to the Orthodox Patriarchate. They 
could be rented by anyone and. could in no way 
be regarded as sanctuaries. 

He pointed out that following rumours spread 
by Jewish organs that the Mosque of Omar had 
been used as an arsenal, that Mosque had been 
opened to the representatives of the foreign Press 
in Jerusalem, who were unable to find anything 
there after a search lasting between six and seven 
hours. 

As regards the St. Simeon Orthodox monas
tery, he pointed out that the Greek Patriarch, 
who was not an Arab, was perfectly free to 
protest to the High Commissioner for Palestine 
against any encroachment and that he would 
not have failed to do so had any such encroach
ments taken place. In present circumstances the 
full responsibility for the military occupation of 
the. monastery lay with the Jews; the Arabs, for 
their part, would continue to respect the Holy 
Places. 

The PRESIDENT firmly drew the attention of 
the r~presentative of the Jewish Agency for 
Palestme a~~ ·of the Arab Higher Committee to 
t?e Councils task, which was to save human 
hfe; he warned against any wrangling between 
Arabs and Jews and, in accordance with the re
quest of the Un~ted Kingdom representative, 
recessed the meetmg to enable the Council t 
hear the representative of the United KI'n d 

0 

· . . g om 
m pnvate sesswn after a few minutes' inte 1 rva. 

The meeti.ng w~s suspended at 11.55 a.m. and 
reconvened m pnvate session at 12.05 p.m. 

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 

general dans un monastere chretien de la Ville 
vieille et qu'elles font usage de sanctuaires 
comme centres d'approvisionnement . 

.Jamal ~ey HussEINI (H<l:u~ Comite arabe) 
frut ressortlr que le Haut Comite arabe a toujours 
craint que les forces juives n'occupent les sanc
tuaires, en pretendant que les Arabes preparent 
quelque action militaire en s'en servant comme 
de bases d'operations. Il declare que le rapport 
presente par le representant de 1' Agence juive 
pour la Palestine est denue de fondement, bien 
qu'il soit possible que des hommes en armes 
en trent et sortent des mosq uees. 

Il se peut egalement que des organisations 
politiques aient ete installees dans des immeubles 
appartenent au patriarchat orthodoxe, immeu
bles qui ne sont en aucune fa<;:on des sanctuaires 
et que chacun est en droit de louer. 

A la suite de rumeurs repandues par les or
ganes juifs scion lesquelles la mosquee d'Omar 
aurait ete utilisee comme un arsenal, Jamal Bey 
Husseini tient a faire remarquer que cette mos
quee a ete ouverte aux reprcsentants de la presse 
etrangcre a Jerusalem et que ceux-ci n'ont rien 
pu y trouver apres six ou sept heures de recher
ches. 

En ce qui concerne le monastcre orthodoxe de 
Saint-Simeon, Jamal Bey Husseini fait remar· 
quer que le patriarche grec (qui n'est pas un 
Arabe) est parfaitement libre de protester con~re 
tout empietement auprcs du Haut Commissa1re 
pour la Palestine, et qu'il n'aurait pas manque de 
le faire s'il s'en etait produit. Dans les circo?s· 
tances actuelles, la responsabilite de l'occupat;on 
militaire du monastere doit incomber aux Jmfs; 
les Arabes pour leur part continueront a respec· 
ter les Lieux saints. 

La PRESIDENT attire }'attention des represen· 
tants de l'Agence juive pour la Palestine ~t d~ 
Haut Comite arabe sur la tache du Conse1l qul 
est de sauvegarder des vies humaines; illanc~ un 
a.vertissement contre tout echange de recr~m~na· 
tlons entre Juifs et Arabs et faisant drmt a la 
d , , u . 

emande du representant du Royaume- m, sus· 
pend la seance pour permettre au Conseil d'en· 
tendre ce dernier en f:P:ince privee. 

La seance est ~uspendue a 11 h. 55 et reprise 
a huis clos a 12 h. 05. 

La seance est levee a 12 h. 55. 




